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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

To the General Assembly of Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. 

 

A. Audit of the financial statements 

 

1. Our opinion 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. (the 

“Company”) which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the statement of 

profit or loss, the statement of other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the 

statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements comprising a 

summary of significant accounting policies. 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 

Company as at 31 December 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended 

in accordance with Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS”). 

 

2. Basis for opinion 

 

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the Standards on Independent Auditing (the “SIA”) that are 

part of Turkish Standards on Auditing issued by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards 

Authority (the “POA”). Our responsibilities under these standards are further described in the “Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We hereby declare that we 

are independent of the Company in accordance with the Ethical Rules for Independent Auditors (the 

“Ethical Rules”) and the ethical requirements regarding independent audit in regulations issued by POA 

that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements. We have also fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with the Ethical Rules and regulations. We believe that the audit evidence 

we have obtained during the independent audit provides a sufficient and appropriate basis for our 

opinion. 

 

3. Key audit matters 

 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the financial statements of the current period. Key audit matters were addressed in the context of 

our independent audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we 

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

http://www.pwc.com.tr/


 

 

Key Audit Matters 
How the key audit matter was addressed in 
the audit 

Financial investments and investments 
accounted for using the equity method - Fair 
value measurement of Eczacıbaşı Holding 
A.Ş. 
 
The Company classified its stake in its ultimate 
parent, Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. and is accounted for 
at fair value and classified as financial investments of 
where fair value changes recognized through other 
comprehensive income in the accompanying 
financial statements. The Company also owns 
additional stake in Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. through 
its associate, EİS  
Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi 
ve Ticaret A.Ş.’s (“EİS”), accounted for using the 
equity method. 
 
As a result of the fair value study performed by the 
Company as of 31 December 2020, the Company 
recognized its shares in Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. at a 
fair value of TRY1,013,832,183 in the accompanying 
financial statements. Besides, although it is not 
presented as a separate financial statement line item 
in the accompanying financial statements, the fair 
value of the shares of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. which 
are classified as financial investment in statement of 
financial position of EİS and that is calculated with 
Company’s ownership ratio on EİS, amounts to 
TRY1,221,810,219. 
 
We focused on this matter during our audit for the 
following reasons below: 
 
-  Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. financial investment that 

is carried at fair value is material to the 
accompanying financial statements and the 
related fair value study requires specialist 
involvement. 

 
-  The fair value model includes future management 

estimates (ie. weighted average cost of capital 
rate, growth rate and minority discount) where 
realization of such management estimates in the 
future include inherent uncertainties. 

 
Please refer to Notes 2.3, 2.4, 3 and 17 to the 
financial statements for the relevant disclosures. 
 

In summary, the following audit procedures are 
performed in the audit of fair value measurement 
study of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş.: 
 
-  The consistency of the information used in the 

fair value study and the mathematical accuracy 
of the related calculation with the financial 
statements are checked. 

 
-  The expertise of those, who carried out the 

valuation study, is assessed in accordance with 
SIA 500 “Audit Evidence”. 

 
-  Data from external sources, such as “market 

value” and “similar acquisitions”, used in the 
valuation models are compared to the relevant 
independent data sources. 

 
-  The reasonableness of the key management 

estimates used in the discounted cash flow 
models (ie. weighted average cost of capital 
rate, growth rates and minority discount) are 
evaluated with the support of our specialists 
and the sensitivity analysis performed are 
checked. In addition, the future revenue 
estimates used in modelling are compared to 
the prior year results and future budgets of 
related companies. 

 
-  The compliance of the related disclosures with 

respect to financial investments with TFRS are 
checked. 

 
Based on the above procedures performed we had 
no material finding on the financial investments. 

  



 

 

4. Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial 

statements 

 

The Company management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 

statements in accordance with TFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is 

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

5. Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

 

Responsibilities of independent auditors in an independent audit are as follows: 

 

Our aim is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an independent auditor’s report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance expressed as a result of an independent audit conducted in 

accordance with SIA is a high level of assurance but does not guarantee that a material misstatement will 

always be detected. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 

users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

As part of an independent audit conducted in accordance with SIA, we exercise professional judgment and 

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

· Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. 

 

· Assess the internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.  



 

 

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 

· Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

independent auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 

to continue as a going concern. 

 

· Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit. 

 

We provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence.  We also communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore 

the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 

public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
  



 

 

B. Other responsibilities arising from regulatory requirements 

 

1. No matter has come to our attention that is significant according to subparagraph 4 of Article 402 of 

Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”) No. 6102 and that causes us to believe that the Company’s 

bookkeeping activities concerning the period from 1 January to 31 December 2020 period are not in 

compliance with the TCC and provisions of the Company’s articles of association related to financial 

reporting. 

 

2. In accordance with subparagraph 4 of Article 402 of the TCC, the Board of Directors submitted the 

necessary explanations to us and provided the documents required within the context of our audit. 

 

3. In accordance with subparagraph 4 of Article 398 of the TCC, the auditor’s report on the early risk 

identification system and committee was submitted to the Company’s Board of Directors on  

26 February 2021. 

 

 

PwC Bağımsız Denetim ve 

Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş. 

 

 

 

 

Ediz Günsel, SMMM 

Partner 

 

Istanbul, 26 February 2021 
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2020 AND 2019
(Amount expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated)

1

Audited Audited
Notes 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 20 83,041,369 105,678,582
Other receivables 5 22,766,386 246,636

- Other receivables due from other parties 22,766,386 246,636
Prepaid expenses 7 776 -

- Prepaid expenses due to other parties 776 -
Current income tax assets 15 1,511,762 -

Total current assets 107,320,293 105,925,218

Financial investments 3, 17 1,206,279,307 980,475,892
- Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income 1,206,279,307 980,475,892
Investments accounted for using equity

accounting method 3, 6 1,581,084,370 1,280,190,754
Right of use assets 14,884 25,578
Intangible assets 2,397 4,497

- Other intangible assets 2,397 4,497
Prepaid expenses 7 62,387 29,518

- Prepaid expenses due to other parties 62,387 29,518
Other non-current assets 9 8,657,642 7,885,315

- Other non-current assets due to other parties 8,657,642 7,885,315

Total non-current assets 2,796,100,987 2,268,611,554

TOTAL ASSETS 2,903,421,280 2,374,536,772

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2020 AND 2019
(Amount expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated)

2

Audited Audited
Notes 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

LIABILITIES

Short term borrowings 17,563 12,625
- Short term lease liabilities due to related parties 17,563 12,625

Trade payables 895,719 617,292
- Trade payables due to related parties 3, 4 894,829 616,991
- Trade payables due to other parties 4 890 301

Current tax liabilities 15 - 636,868
Other short-term liabilities 9 83,057 110,913

- Other short-term liabilities to other parties 83,057 110,913

Total current liabilities 996,339 1,377,698

Long term borrowings - 15,248
- Lease liabilities due to related parties - 15,248

Deferred income 383 383
- Deferred income due from related parties 383 383

Deferred tax liabilities 15 54,664,879 43,374,667

Total non-current liabilities 54,665,262 43,390,298

Total Liabilities 55,661,601 44,767,996

Share capital 10 105,000,000 105,000,000
Adjustment to share capital 10 105,173,533 105,173,533
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss 2,012,374,792 1,580,366,570

- Gains/losses on financial assets measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (*) 2,013,132,356 1,581,124,134

- Defined benefit plans re-measurement gains/losses (757,564) (757,564)
Items to be reclassified to profit or loss 1,876,525 1,876,525

- Foreign currency translation differences 1,876,525 1,876,525
Restricted reserves 10 35,622,785 35,622,785
Retained earnings 451,728,363 429,100,813
Net income for the period 135,983,681 72,628,550

Total Equity 2,847,759,679 2,329,768,776

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2,903,421,280 2,374,536,772

(*) ‘Gains/losses on financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income’ is presented under ‘Other
revaluation on remeasurement gains’ in PDP (KAP) templates.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements..



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. 

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 31 DECEMBER 2020 AND 2019
(Amount expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated)

3

Audited Audited
1 January - 1 January -

Notes 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

PROFIT OR LOSS

Revenue - -
Cost of sales (-) - -

Gross profit - -

GROSS PROFIT - -

General administrative expenses (-) 11 (4,893,322) (5,540,758)
Other operating income 12 65,188,306 49,627,248
Other operating expenses (-) 12 (16,502,337) (6,467,034)

Operating profit 43,792,647 37,619,456

Share of income/(loss) of investments
accounted for using equity method 6, 13 96,912,943 39,332,050

Operating income before finance expense 140,705,590 76,951,506

Financial expenses (-) 14 (4,564) (6,111)

Profit before tax from continuing opration 140,701,026 76,945,395

Tax expense from continuing operations (4,717,345) (4,316,845)

Income tax expenses (-) 15 (4,717,304) (4,317,422)
Deferred tax income/(expenses) 15 (41) 577

Net profit from continuing operations 135,983,681 72,628,550

Earnings per share from continuing operations 16 1.30 0.69

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. 

STATEMENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 31 DECEMBER 2020 AND 2019
(Amount expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated)

4

Audited Audited
1 January - 1 January -

Notes 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Profit for the period 135,983,681 72,628,550

Other comprehensive income/(expenses)

Other comprehensive income
not to be reclassified to profit or loss 432,008,222 224,215,438

- Gains/losses on financial assets measured at
fair value through comprehensive income (*) 225,803,415 96,770,085

- Gain on financial assets measured
at equity-based method - 35,270,350

- Gains/losses on financial assets measured at
fair value through comprehensive income, tax effect (**) (11,290,171) (3,430,191)

Share of other comprehensive income
of investments accounted for using equity based method
that will not be reclassified to profit or loss, net 6 217,494,978 95,605,194

Other comprehensive income (after tax) 432,008,222 224,215,438

Total comprehensive income 567,991,903 296,843,988

Total Comprehensive Income for the period
Attributable To: 567,991,903 296,843,988

Non-controlling interests - -
Owners of the company 567,991,903 296,843,988

Earnings per share from continuing operations 16 5.41 2.83

(*) ‘Gains/losses on financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income’ is presented under ‘Other
revaluation on remeasurement gains’ in PDP (KAP) templates.

(**) ‘Gains/losses on financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, tax effect’
is presented under ‘Other revaluation on remeasurement gains, tax effect’ in PDP (KAP) templates.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 31 DECEMBER 2020 AND 2019
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

5

Items not to Items to
be reclassified be reclassified

to Profit to Profit
or Loss or Loss

Gains on Financial
Assets Measured

Defined at Fair Value Foreign
Paid in Adjustment to Benefit Plans through Other Currency Net

Share Share Re-measurement Comprehensive Translation Restricted Retained Profit Total
Notes Capital Capital Gains/(Losses) Income Differences Reserves Earnings /(Loss) Equity

1 January 2019 105,000,000 105,173,533 (757,564) 1,420,345,426 1,876,525 35,622,785 343,631,914 100,782,169 2,111,674,788

Transfers - - - - - - 100,782,169 (100,782,169) -
Dividend paid 10 - - - - - - (78,750,000) - (78,750,000)
Total comprehensive income - - - 187,536,776 - - - 72,628,550 260,165,326

- Net Profit for the period - - - - - - - 72,628,550 72,628,550
- Other comprehensive income - - - 187,536,776 - - - - 187,536,776

Decrease due to other changes (*) - - - (26,758,068) - - 63,436,730 - 36,678,662

31 December 2019 10 105,000,000 105,173,533 (757,564) 1,581,124,134 1,876,525 35,622,785 429,100,813 72,628,550 2,329,768,776

1 January 2020 105,000,000 105,173,533 (757,564) 1,581,124,134 1,876,525 35,622,785 429,100,813 72,628,550 2,329,768,776

Transfers - - - - - - 72,628,550 (72,628,550) -
Dividend paid 10 - - - - - - (50,001,000) - (50,001,000)
Total comprehensive income - - - 432,008,222 - - - 135,983,681 567,991,903

- Net Profit for the period - - - - - - - 135,983,681 135,983,681
- Other comprehensive income - - - 432,008,222 - - - - 432,008,222

31 December 2020 10 105,000,000 105,173,533 (757,564) 2,013,132,356 1,876,525 35,622,785 451,728,363 135,983,681 2,847,759,679

(*) In accordance with the Board of Directors decision on 15 May 2019, Kaynak Tekniği Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (‘Kaynak Tekniği’), which represents 15.86% of the capital of Kaynak Tekniği, has a total of 766,811 shares, each of which has a 
nominal value of 1 TL, and all of the shares of Company B with a nominal value of 766,811 TL. Pursuant to the principles included in the contract, it has been transferred to Lincoln Electric France S.A.S for $ 11,442,922. Due to the sale of
the asset, fair valuation differences accounted under other comprehensive income are classified in previous years' profits.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEARS ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2020 AND 2019
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated)

6

Audited Audited
1 January - 1 January -

Notes 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Cash flows from operating activities (15,275,437) (9,375,941)

Net profit for the period 135,983,681 72,628,550
Income from continuing operations 135,983,681 72,628,550

Adjustments to reconcile net profit (123,489,397) (84,931,835)
Adjustments related to depreciation and amortization 17,025 15,971
Adjustments related to interest income 12 (2,211,784) (5,491,086)
Adjustments related to interest expenses 14 4,564 6,111
Adjustments related to unrealized foreign currency translation differences (6,745,760) (10,642,449)
Adjustments related to dividend income 12 (22,357,844) (34,141,946)

Adjustments related to undistributed profit of investments
accounted for using the equity method 6 (96,912,943) (48,142,289)
- Adjustments related to undistributed profit of associates (96,912,943) (48,142,289)

Adjustments related to tax (income)/expense 15 4,717,345 4,316,845
Other adjustments related to profit/loss reconciliations - 9,147,008

Changes in operating assets and liabilities (23,075,151) (765,683)
Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in changes in other receivables (22,519,750) (25,615)

- (Increase)/decrease in short-term other receivables due to other parties (22,519,750) (25,615)
Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in prepaid expenses (33,645) (5,006)
Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in trade payables 278,427 187,984

- Increase/(decrease) in trade payables due to related parties 277,838 188,636
- Increase/(decrease) in trade payables due to other parties 589 (652)

Adjustments for other changes in working capital (800,183) (923,046)
- (Increase)/decrease in oter assets related with other operations (772,327) (976,466)
- Increase/(decrease) in liabilities related with other operations (27,856) 53,420

Cash flows from operating activities (10,580,867) (13,068,968)
Interest received 2,171,364 5,431,176
Tax refunds/payments (6,865,934) (1,738,149)

Cash flows from investing activities 35,872,149 138,356,796

Cash outflows related to share purchase or capital
increase of subsidiaries and associates 6 (1,326,200) (20,210,256)

Cash inflows from selling other equity instruments purchased by the entity - 63,436,730
Dividends received 3 37,198,349 95,130,322

Cash flows from financing activities (50,020,105) (78,766,587)

Cash outflow from leasing liabilities (19,105) (16,587)
Dividend paid (-) 10 (50,001,000) (78,750,000)

NET İNCREASE ON CASH AND CASH EQUİVALENTS BEFORE 
   THE EFFECT OF FOREİGN EXCHANGE DİFFERENCES (29,423,393) 50,214,268

Effect of foreign exchange-rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 6,745,760 10,642,449

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (22,677,633) 60,856,717

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD 20 105,561,332 44,704,615

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 20 82,883,699 105,561,332

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. 

NOTES TO THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

7

1. ORGANISATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. (‘the Company’) was incorporated on 29 December 1973 in 
accordance with the Capital Markets Law and other related regulations to perform capital market
operations.

The Company’s principal activities are, joining the capital of companies which has the ability or
potential to profit and invest the stocks of those companies to other securities.

At 31 December 2020, 18.43% of total shares of the Company are publicly listed (31 December 2019:
18.43%). The ultimate parent of the Company is Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş., which has 81.57% of the 
shares of the Company (31 December 2019: 81.57%) (Note 10). The control of the main partner belongs
to the Eczacıbaşı family. As stated in note 2.1 the Company classifies and accounts EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, 
Sınai ve Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi (‘EİS’), İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat 
Malzemeleri Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş. (‘İntema’) and E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri San. ve Tic. 
A.Ş. (‘E-kart’) as investments accounted for using equity method. 

The Company does not have any employees as of 31 December 2020 and management activities are
carried out through the procurement of services (31 December 2019: None).

The Company’s registered address is as follows:

Kanyon Ofis Büyükdere Caddesi, No: 185 Levent, Şişli, İstanbul. 

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2020 have been approved by the Board of
Directors on 26 February 2021. General Assembly and specific regulatory institutions have the power to
amend the financial statements

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 Basis of Presentation

2.1.1 Statement of compliance

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the CMB’s
Communiqué Serial II, No: 14.1, ‘Basis of Financial Reporting in Capital Markets’ (‘the Communiqué’)
published in the Official Gazette numbered 28676 on 13 June 2013. According to the article 5 of the
Communiqué, financial statements are prepared in accordance with Turkish Accounting
Standards/Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (‘TAS/TFRS’) and its addendum and interpretations
(‘TAS/TFRS’) issued by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (‘POA’).

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with the “2019 TFRS
Taxonomy” which was published on 15 April 2019 by POA and the format and mandatory information
recommended by CMB.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.1 Basis of Presentation (Continued)

2.1.1 Statement of compliance (Continued)

In accordance with the decleration of CMB, based on the decision taken at 17 March 2005, that there is
no need to inflation accounting application for publicly listed companies effective after 1 January 2005.
Financial statements of the Company were prepared within the framework of this decision.

The Company maintains its books of account and prepares its statutory financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles in the Turkish Commercial Code (‘TCC’) and tax legislation.
Subsidiaries of the company which currently operate in foreign countries maintain their books of account
and prepare their financial statements in accordance with the local tax legislations of the countries where
they are operating and they maintain their books of account and prepare their financial statements in
terms of national currency.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

2.1.2 Functional currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Company’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).
The financial statements are presented in TL, which is the functional currency of the Company and the
presentation currency of the Company.

2.1.3 Comparative information and restatement of prior period financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in the comparative prior period to enable the determination
of changes in financial position and performance. In order to comply with the presentation of current
period financial statements, necessary comparative figures are reclassified, and significant differences
are explained.

2.1.4 Investments accounted for using equity method

The Company accounts its associates using the equity method (‘equity method’) under the following
conditions.

An associate is an entity, including an unincorporated entity such as a partnership, over which the
investor has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.

Equity method is applied when the investor has significant influence over the investee. Under the equity
accounting method, on initial recognition the investment in an associate or a joint venture is recognised
at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit
or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The investor’s share of the investee’s profit or loss
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss. Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be necessary
for changes in the investor’s proportionate interest in the investee arising from changes in the investee’s
other comprehensive income (Note 6).
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.1 Basis of Presentation (Continued)

According to TAS 28, “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”, after application of the equity
method, the Company determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its
investment in its associate. At each reporting date, the Company determines whether there is objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Company
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value, then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate’ in the income
statement. Detailed explanations regarding to the impairment in assets are presented in Note 2.3.

Nominal capital of the associates accounted for using the equity method and the Company’s shares in
those associates’ shares are presented below:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Direct Stock Direct Stock

Nominal shareholding market Nominal shareholding market
capital of parent value capital of parent value

EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal     
   Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.     685,260,000 %29.69 1,517,764,557 685,260,000 %29.67 754,304,742
İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat Malzemeleri        
   Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş. 19,440,000 %46.21 358,430,638 19,440,000 %46.21 83,184,654
E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri
   Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. 3,110,000 %31.01 - 3,110,000 %31.01 -

Assets, liabilities, equity, gross profit and profit/(losses) of associates included in the financial
statements by equity method as of 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Total Total
31 December 2020 assets liabilities Equity Gross profit Profit/(Loss)

EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal  
   Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi 5,970,231,000 687,923,000 5,282,308,000 300,669,000 322,114,000
İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat Malzemeleri   
   Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş. 362,921,159 335,807,963 27,113,196 81,287,751 2,732,689
E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri
   San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 109,718,035 127,205,791 (17,487,756) 20,866,671 (14,378,120)

Total Total
31 December 2019 assets liabilities Equity Gross profit Profit/(Loss)

EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal  
   Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi 4,838,337,000 561,079,000 4,277,258,000 315,814,000 162,728,000
İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat Malzemeleri  
   Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş. 411,005,948 386,625,441 24,380,507 77,588,303 (289,513)
E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri
   San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 82,701,835 87,039,793 (4,337,958) 47,816,328 16,917,939

2.1.5 Changes in accounting policies

Significant changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively and prior period financial
statements are restated.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.1 Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Accounting policy changes arising from the first application of a new TFRS are applied retrospectively
or prospectively in accordance with the transitional provisions of that TFRS. Significant accounting
errors (if any) are applied retrospectively and prior period financial statements are restated. Changes in
accounting estimates are applied in the current period when the change is made only for a period, and
both in the period when the change is made and prospectively.

2.1.6 Changes in the accounting estimates and errors

If changes in estimates are for only one period, changes are applied to the current year but if changes in
estimates are for the following periods, changes are applied both to the current and following years
prospectively, The Company did not have any major changes in the accounting estimates during the
current year.

Significant accounting errors are corrected retrospectively, by restating the prior period financial
statements.

2.1.7 Going concern

The Company prepared its consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

2.1.8 Segment reporting

Since the operations of the company is in Turkey and operates in one field segment reporting is not
prepared for the period.

2.2 New standards, amendments and interpretations

The accounting policies of the financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2020 have been
applied consistently to those used in the prior year except for the new and amended TFRS standards and
TFRYK interpretations as of 1 January 2020.

a) Standards, amendments and interpretations as of 31 December 2020:

- Amendments to TAS 1 and TAS 8 on the definition of material; effective from Annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020. These amendments to TAS 1, “Presentation of financial
statements”, and TAS 8, “Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors”, and
consequential amendments to other TFRSs:

- Use a consistent definition of materiality throughout TFRSs and the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting,

- Clarify the explanation of the definition of material and
- Incorporate some of the guidance in TAS 1 about immaterial information.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.2 New standards, amendments and interpretations (Continued)

The mentioned amendment does not have a significant impact on the financial position and performance
of the Company.

● Amendments to TFRS 3 - definition of a business; effective from Annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2020. This amendment revises the definition of a business. According to
feedback received by the IASB, application of the current guidance is commonly thought to be
too complex, and it results in too many transactions qualifying as business combinations. The
mentioned amendment does not have a significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Company.

● Amendments to TFRS 9, TAS 39 and TFRS 7 - Interest rate benchmark reform; effective
from Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. These amendments provide certain
reliefs in connection with interest rate benchmark reform. The reliefs relate to hedge accounting
and have the effect that IBOR reform should not generally cause hedge accounting to terminate.
However, any hedge ineffectiveness should continue to be recorded in the income statement.
Given the pervasive nature of hedges involving IBOR-based contracts, the reliefs will affect
companies in all industries. The mentioned amendment does not have a significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Company.

- TFRS 16, changes related “Leases - COVID 19 related lease concessions”; Effective
from annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020. Due to the COVID-19 outbreak,
some privileges were provided to lessees in lease payments. These concessions can take a
variety of forms, including suspension or postponement of lease payments. On 28 May
2020, with the amendment to the TFRS 16 Leases standard, the IASB introduced an
optional facilitating application for lessees to not evaluate whether the privileges granted
due to COVID-19 in lease payments are a change in the lease. Lessees may choose to
account for such lease concessions in accordance with the provisions that apply in the
absence of a change to the lease. This ease of implementation often causes the lease
concession to be accounted for as variable lease payment in periods when an event or
condition that triggers a reduction in lease payments occurs. The mentioned amendment
does not have a significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Company.

b) Standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued but not effective as at
31 December 2020:

● TFRS 17, “Insurance Contracts”; Effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021. This standard replaces TFRS 4, which currently permits a wide variety of practices in
accounting for insurance contracts. TFRS 17 will fundamentally change the accounting by all
entities that issue insurance contracts and investment contracts with discretionary participation
features. It is not expected to have a significant impact on the financial position and performance
of the Company.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.2 New standards, amendments and interpretations (Continued)

● Amendments to TAS 1, “Presentation of financial statements” on classification of liabilities;
effective from 1 January 2022. These narrow-scope amendments to TAS 1, “Presentation of
financial statements”, clarify that liabilities are classified as either current or non-current,
depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting period. Classification is unaffected
by the expectations of the entity or events after the reporting date (for example, the receipt of a
waiver or a breach of covenant). The amendment also clarifies what TAS 1 means when it refers
to the ‘settlement’ of a liability. The effects of this change on the financial position and
performance of the Company are evaluated.

- Narrow amendments in TFRS 3, TAS 16, TAS 37 and some annual improvements in
TFRS 1, TFRS 9, TAS 41 and TFRS 16; effective from annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022.

o Amendments to TFRS 3, “Business Combinations”; this amendment updates a
reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting in TFRS 3 without
changing the accounting requirements for business combinations.

o Amendments to TAS 16, “Tangible fixed assets”; prohibits a company from deducting
the income from the sale of manufactured products from the amount of the tangible fixed
asset until the asset is ready for use. Instead, the company will reflect such sales revenue
and related cost in profit or loss.

o Amendments to TAS 37, “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”; this amendment specifies what costs a company involves when deciding
whether to lose from a contract.

Annual improvements, TFRS 1, “The first implementation of Turkish Financial Reporting
Standards” make minor changes in the explanatory examples of TFRS 9, “Financial
Instruments”, TAS 41, “Agricultural Activities” and TFRS 16.

The effects of this change on the financial position and performance of the Company are being
evaluated.

 Amendments to TFRS 9, TAS 39, TFRS 7, TFRS 4 and TFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform Phase 2; effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. The Phase
2 amendments address issues that arise from the implementation of the reforms, including the
replacement of one benchmark with an alternative one. The effects of this change on the
financial position and performance of the Company are being evaluated.

 Amendments to TFRS 17 and TFRS 4, “Insurance contracts”, deferral of TFRS 9;
effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. These amendments defer
the date of application of TFRS 17 by two years to 1 January 2023 and change the fixed date of
the temporary exemption in TFRS 4 from applying TFRS 9, Financial Instrument until 1 January
2023. The effects of this change on the financial position and performance of the Company are
being evaluated.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

Except for the equity method principles explained in Note 2.1.4, the significant accounting policies
applied in the preparation of these financial statements are summarized below:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank deposits and short-term investments, which can
easily be converted into cash for a known amount, and which have high liquidity and insignificant
conversion risk with maturities of three months or less (Note 20).

Financial assets

Classification and measurement

Company classified its financial assets in three categories; financial assets carried at amortized cost,
financial assets carried at fair value though profit of loss, financial assets carried at fair value though
other comprehensive income. Classification is performed in accordance with the business model
determined based on the purpose of benefits from financial assets and expected cash flows. Management
performs the classification of financial assets at the acquisition date.

a) Assets recognized at amortized cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, whose payments are fixed or predetermined, which are not actively
traded and which are not derivative instruments are measured at amortized cost. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities more than 12 months after the balance sheet date. Those with
maturities more than 12 months are classified as non-current assets. The Company’s financial assets
carried at amortized cost comprise ‘trade receivables’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the statement
of financial position. In addition, with recourse factoring receivables classified in trade receivables are
classified as financial assets carried at amortized cost since collection risk for those receivables are not
transferred to counterparty.

Impairment

Company has applied simplified approach and used impairment matrix for the calculation of impairment
on its receivables carried at amortized cost, since they do not comprise of any significant finance
component. In accordance with this method, if any provision provided to the trade receivables as a result
of a specific events, Company measures expected credit loss from these receivables by the life-time
expected credit loss. The calculation of expected credit loss is performed based on the past experience
of the company and its expectations for the future indications.

b) Financial assets carried at fair value

Assets that are held by the management for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets are measured at their fair value. If the management do not plan to dispose these assets
in 12 months after the balance sheet date, they are classified as non-current assets. Company make a
choice for the equity instruments during the initial recognition and elect profit or loss or other
comprehensive income for the presentation of fair value gain and loss.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

i) Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss comprise of ‘derivative instruments’ in the
statement of financial position. Derivative instruments are recognized as asset when the fair value of the
instrument is positive, as liability when the fair value of the instrument is negative. Company’s financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss consist of forward contracts, currency swaps and cross
currency fixed interest rate swap.

ii) Financial assets carried at value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets carried at fair value through other comprehensive income comprise of ‘financial assets’
in the statement of financial position. In addition, trade receivables collected from factoring companies
due to without recourse factoring activities are classified as financial assets carried at fair value through
other comprehensive income since the collection risk of these receivables are transferred to the factoring
companies and management’s business plan for them is ‘hold to sell’. When the financial assets carried
at fair value through other comprehensive income are sold, fair value gain or loss classified in other
comprehensive income is classified to retained earnings.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions during the year have been translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions, Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date, Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from
translation of monetary assets and liabilities are reflected in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share disclosed in the statements of profit or loss are determined by dividing net profit by
the weighted average number of shares that have been outstanding during the year concerned
(Note 16).

In Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by making a pro-rata distribution of shares ‘bonus
shares’ to existing shareholders from retained earnings, For the purpose of earnings per share computations,
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year has been adjusted in respect of bonus
shares issued without a corresponding change in resources by giving them a retroactive effect for the year in
which they were issued and for each earlier period.

Events after the reporting period

Subsequent events cover any events which arise between the reporting date and the statement of
financial position date, even if they occurred after any declaration of the net profit for the period or
specific financial information publicly disclosed.

The Company adjusts its financial statements if such subsequent events arise which require an
adjustment to the financial statements.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial statements,

a) A person or a close member of that person's family is related to a reporting entity if that person:

i. Has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
ii. Has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
iii. Is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the

reporting entity,

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

i. The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others),

ii. One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member),

iii. Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party,
iv. One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the

third entity,
v. The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the

reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity, If the reporting entity is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity,

vi. The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a),
vii. A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the

key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity
and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged (Note 3).

Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation, When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows,

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably (Note 8).
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation and deferred income taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from ‘profit
before tax’ as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible, The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting.

In accordance with the regulation numbered 7061, published in Official Gazette on 5 December 2017,’
Law on the Amendment of Some Tax Acts and Some Other Laws’, corporate tax rate for the years 2018,
2019 and 2020 has increased from 20% to 22%. Therefore, deferred tax assets and liabilities as of
31 December 2019 are calculated with 22% tax rate for the temporary differences which will be realized
in 2019 and 2020, and with 20% tax for those which will be realized after 2021 and onwards, however
since the effect of change in tax rate on financial statements is immaterial, calculated amount is not
accounted in financial statements as of 31 December 2020.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax liability or asset is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases which are used in the
computation of taxable profit, Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilized, Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Company is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future (Note 15).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax are recognized as in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively, Where current
tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included
in the accounting for the business combination.

Share capital and dividends

Ordinary shares are classified as capital, Dividends payable on ordinary shares are recognized as an
appropriation of the profit in the period in which they are declared,

Impairment of assets

Except for financial asset,all type of assets are subject to tests for indicators of impairment, Accordingly,
when the carrying value of the assets exceeds its net recoverable value an impairment is recognized, Net
recoverable value is the higher of the net sales value or value in use, Value in use of an asset is estimated
as the total of projected future cash inflows and salvage value at the end of the useful life of the asset.

The Company management assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication
that an asset may be impaired, If any such indication exists, the Company management estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset and recognizes an impairment loss for the exceed portion of the asset
carrying value, In the subsequent period, if there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in
prior periods for an asset other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased, the impairment
may is reversed under certain conditions.

In assessing whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the Company considers, as
a minimum, the following indications:

(a) There are observable indications that the asset’s value has declined during the period significantly
more than would be expected as a result of the passage of time or normal use,

(b) Significant changes with an adverse effect on the entity have taken place during the period, or
will take place soon, in the technological, market, economic or legal environment in which the
entity operates or in the market to which an asset is dedicated,

(c) Market interest rates or other market rates of return on investments have increased during the
period, and those increases are likely to affect the discount rate used in calculating an asset’s value
in use and decrease the asset’s recoverable amount materially,

(d) The carrying amount of the net assets of the entity is more than its market capitalisation.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

The Company considers for all of its assets, except goodwill, whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset other than goodwill may no longer exist or may
have decreased at each reporting period and, if such a conditions exists, the Company reverses the
impairment loss recognized in prior periods for an individual asset, Unless the related asset is accounted
and measured under a different standard, reversal of the impairment is accounted under statement of
comprehensive income.

TFRS 16, “Leases” standard

The Company as the lessee

At inception of a contract, the Company assess whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period in exchange for consideration. The Company considers the following matters when assessing
whether the agreement transfers the right to control the use of an identified asset for a limited period:

a) The contract contains an identified asset: - this may be specified explicitly or implicitly.
b) The asset should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically

distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, the asset is not identified.
c) The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of an

asset throughout the period of use and
d) The Company has the right to direct use of the asset. The Company concludes to have the right

of use, when it is predetermined how and for what purpose the Company will use the asset. The
Company has the right to direct use of asset if either:

i. The Company has the right to operate the asset (or to direct others to operate the asset in a
manner that it determines) throughout the period of use, without the supplier having the
right to change those operating instructions; or

ii. The customer designed the asset (or specific aspects of the asset) in a way that
predetermines how and for what purpose the asset will be used throughout the period of
use.

At the commencement date, the Company recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability in financial
statements.

Right-of-use asset

The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise:

a) The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,
b) Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received,
c) Any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

To apply a cost model, the Company measure the right-of-use asset at cost:

a) Less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses; and
b) Adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

The Company apply the depreciation requirements in TAS 16, “Property, Plant and Equipment” in
depreciating the right-of-use asset, subject to the requirements. If the lease transfers ownership of the
underlying asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects
that the lessee will exercise a purchase option, the Company depreciate the right-of-use asset from the
commencement date to the end of the useful life of the underlying asset. Otherwise, The Company
depreciate the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life
of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.

The Company apply TAS 36, ‘Impairment of Assets’ to determine whether the right-of-use asset is
impaired and to account for any impairment loss identified.

Lease liability

At the commencement date, the Company measure the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company
use the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. The alternative borrowing rate has been determined by
taking into account the borrowing rates of the Company companies on the contract dates.

a) Fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable,
b) Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or

rate as at the commencement date,
c) The exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that

option; and
d) Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising

an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, the Company measure the lease liability by:

a) Increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability,
b) Reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and
c) Remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications, or to reflect

revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

Interest on the lease liability in each period during the lease term is the amount that produces a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability. The Company determine the
revised discount rate as the interest rate implicit in the lease for the remainder of the lease term, if that
rate can be readily determined, or the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of reassessment, if
the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined. After the commencement date, The
Company remeasure the lease liability to reflect changes to the lease payments. The Company recognize
the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

The duration of the contracts constituting the rental liability of the company varies between 1 and 3
years.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Extension and early termination options

In determining the lease liability, the Company considers the extension and termination options. The
majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable both by the Company and by the
respective lessor. Extension and termination options are included in the lease term if the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended and the options are enforcable by Company’s initiative in the contract.
The Company remeasures the lease term, if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances
occurs which affects the initial assessment. As result of the evaluations performed in the current period,
there is no lease obligation or right of use assets arising from the inclusion of extension and early
termination options in the lease period.

Variable lease payments

Lease payments arising from a portion of the Company’s lease agreements consist of variable lease
payments. These variable lease payments, which are not covered by the TFRS 16 standard, are recorded
as rent expense in the income statement in the relevant period. In the year ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, the Company does not have any contracts with variable lease payments.

Practices that facilitate

Short-term lease contracts with a lease term of 12 months or less and contracts for information
technology equipment leases (predominantly printers, laptops, mobile phones, etc.) determined by the
Company as low value are evaluated within the scope of the exemption granted by TFRS 16, "Leases"
standard. Payments related to these contracts continue to be recognized as an expense in the period they
occur. A single discount rate has been applied to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics (such as leases with a similar remaining lease term for a similar asset class in a similar
economic environment).

The Company - as the lessor

All the leasings of the Company as lessor are operational leasings. For operational leasings, leased assets
are classified under investment properties, tangible assets or other current assets in the balance sheet and
rental income is accounted in the income statement in equal amounts for the leasing period. Rental
income is accounted in the consolidated income statement for the leasing period on a straight-line basis.

The Company distributes an amount that takes place in an agreement which includes an item that has or
has not one or more extra leasing qualities along with a leasing item through applying the TFRS 15
“Revenue arising from agreements made with customers” standard.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.4 Significant accounting assumptions, estimations and judgements

Preparation of financial statements requires the usage of estimations and assumptions which may affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the statement of financial position date, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities and reported amounts of income and expenses during financial period,
Although the estimations and assumptions are based on the best estimates of the management’s existing
incidents and operations, they may differ from the actual results, Judgments that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements and estimates that can cause a
significant adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
include:

Determination the effect of recoverable amount

The Company, assess its assets that are accounted in its financial statements at each balance sheet date
in order to determine whether any of the assets’s carrying value exceed the amount to be recovered
through use or sale of the asset, In assessing whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired
and in determing the recoverable amount of the asset, the Company uses both internal and external
sources, Within this context, the Company estimates, at each balance sheet date, cash inflows and
outflows through use or sale of assets and when the carrying value of any asset exceed the recoverable
amount, the Company reduces the carrying value of the asset to its recoverable amount.

Financial assets

Financial assets carried at fair value through other comprehensive income:

The company subsequently measures its financial assets carried at fair value through other
comprehensive income with their fair values. In this context, the company determines its financial assets
whose shares are traded in the stock exchange by multiplying the closing price announced at BIST with
the ownership rate. In addition to this, when a price for an identical financial asset is not observable it
is estimated that the fair value of the related asset can not be reliably determined and the fair value of
the related financial assets shall be found by using another valuation technique, With in this context, the
Company measures the fair value of its fair value through other comprehensive income assets by
discounting the free cash flows of its financial assets by the weighed average cost of capital. The fair
vaule calculation of the Company’s financial assets is based on the Company management’s approved
projections and is sensitive to the estimations and assumptions that are used in the projected cash flows.
As a result, the estimates made here may not be an indication of the values that the Company can obtain
in a current market transaction, and the actual values may deviate significantly from the estimates
(Note 17).

2.5 Significant changes regarding the current period

The necessary actions have been taken by the Company management to minimize the possible effects
of COVID-19, which affects the whole world, on the Company's activities and financial position. The
effects of the COVID-19 epidemic on the activities of the Company are evaluated comprehensively,
saving measures and additional measures are taken to ensure effective expense and cash management to
reduce negative effects.



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. 

NOTES TO THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

22

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contiued)

2.5 Significant changes regarding the current period (Continued)

It could not be estimated how long the COVID-19 effect would last and how wide the effect would
spread both in Turkey and the World. As the severity and duration of the effects become clearer, it will
be possible to make a more specific and healthy evaluation for the medium and long term. In addition
to this, while preparing the financial statements of the Company as of 31 December 2020, the possible
effects of the COVID-19 outbreak were evaluated, the estimates and assumptions used in the preparation
of the financial statements were reviewed and the fair value determination studies have been updated
and reflected the differences for financial assets included in the year end financial statements as of
31 December 2020 (Note 17).

3. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Details of transactions between the Company and other related parties as at 31 December 2020 and 2019
are disclosed below.

Trade payables 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. 894,829 616,991

Total (Note 4) 894,829 616,991

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. 1,013,832,183 826,040,560
Eczacıbaşı Yapı Gereçleri A.Ş. 192,447,124 154,435,332

Total (Note 17) 1,206,279,307 980,475,892

Investments accounted for using equity accounting method

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

EİS 1,568,555,362 1,268,924,522
İntema 12,529,008 11,266,232

Total (Note 6) 1,581,084,370 1,280,190,754
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3. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Dividend income
1 January - 1 January -

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. (Note 12) 20,709,004 24,580,209
EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal  
   Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (Note 6) (*) 14,840,505 60,988,376
Eczacıbaşı Yapı Gereçleri A.Ş. (Note 12) 1,648,840 9,561,737

Total 37,198,349 95,130,322

(*) Related amounts are eliminated from the financial statements in accordance with the accounting policies
applied for the investments accounted for using the equity method explained in Note 2.1 and are not
included in the statement of profit or loss.

General administrative expenses

Services obtained and rental expenses
1 January - 1 January -

Transactions with related parties 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. (**) 4,054,099 4,549,413
Eczacıbaşı Bilişim Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. 16,989 16,988
EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve  
   Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. 14,925 12,771
Eczacıbaşı Spor Kulübü  - 170,000

Total (Note 11) 4,086,013 4,749,172

(**) Contains Companys’ legal, financial, corporate identity, budgeting, auditing and human resources services
received from Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş.. These expenses are billed back to Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. 
accordingly to the time spent for the relevant service.

Finance expenses

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Interest expenses from leasing payables (***) 4,564 6,111

Total (Note 14) 4,564 6,111

(***) The interest expense related to the debts arising from the leasing transactions of the Company from EİS 
Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sinai ve Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.  
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3. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Benefits paid to management

There is no long-term benefit of key management for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. Short-
term benefit of key management for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are stated below:

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Salaries and other benefits (****) 282,000 261,000

282,000 261,000

(****) It consists of the amount paid to the independent board members of the company.

4. TRADE PAYABLES

Short-term trade payables
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Trade payables due to related parties (Note 3) 894,829 616,991
Trade payables due to other parties 890 301

Total 895,719 617,292

5. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Short-term other receivables
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Deposits and guarantees given (*) 22,519,750 -
Receivables from tax office 246,636 246,636

Total 22,766,386 246,636

(*) As of 31 December 2020, the deposits and guarantees given amounting to TL 22,519,750 consist of cash
guarantees given to the intermediary institution for financial investment transactions.
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6. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Investments accounted for using equity method 1,581,084,370 1,280,190,754

Total (Note 3) 1,581,084,370 1,280,190,754

As of 31 December 2020, Company’s shares in its associates, EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sinai ve Finansal 
Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A,Ş, and İntema İnşaat ve Tesis Malzemeleri A,Ş, and E-Kart Elektronik Kart 
Sistemleri San. ve Tic. A.Ş. are equal to 29.69% and 46.21% and 31.01% respectively (31 December 2019: 
29.67%, 46.21%, and 31.01% respectively). The carrying value of of EIS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal 
Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A,Ş and İntema İnşaat Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş., determined in accordance 
with equity method, as of 31 December 2020 is TL 1,568,555,362 and TL 12,529,008 respectively (31
December 2019: TL 1,268,924,522 and TL 11,266,232 for EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sinai ve Finansal 
Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A,Ş. and İntema İnşaat ve Tesis Malzemeleri A,Ş. respectively.). 

Movements of investments in associates through the period are as follows:

2020 2019

Opening 1 January 1,280,190,754 1,186,031,630

Company’s share in the associate’s profit (Note 13) 96,912,943 48,142,289
Eleminated dividend payments of associates (-) (14,840,505) (60,988,376)
Share purchase effect during the period 1,326,200 -
Effect of changes in fair value of financial assets

at fair value through other comprehensive income 217,233,142 95,249,194
Deduction of previous year's participation losses with

capital increase (Note 13) (*) - (8,810,239)
Effect of capital increase (*) - 20,210,256
Effect of other changes recognized in comprehensive income 261,836 356,000

Closing 31 December 1,581,084,370 1,280,190,754

(*) Related amounts are due to capital increase to subsidiary of the Company, İntema İnşaat and Tesisat Malz. 
Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş.. 
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7. PREPAID EXPENSES

Short-term prepaid expenses
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Prepaid expenses for the following months 776 -

Total 776 -

Long-term prepaid expenses
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Prepaid expenses for the following years 62,387 29,518

Total 62,387 29,518

8. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

a) The company does not have any blocked accounts as of 31 December 2020.
(31 December 2019: None).

b) As of 31 December 2020, the Company has letters of guarantee given amounting to TL 30,000
(31 December 2019: TL 30,000)

c) As of 31 December 2020 the Company has no lawsuits againts the Company (31 December 2019:
None).

9. OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Other non-current assets

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Deferred VAT 8,657,642 7,885,315

Total 8,657,642 7,885,315

Other short-term liabilities
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Taxes and funds payable 83,057 110,913

Total 83,057 110,913
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10. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES VE OTHER EQUITY ITEMS LERİ 

a) Paid in capital

The paid-in capital of the Company is TL 105,000,000 (31 December 2019: TL 105,000,000) divided
by 105,000,000 shares each with a nominal value of TL 1 (31 December 2019: TL 1).

The Company has no preferred stock as of 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: None).

The Company’s registered share capital ceiling is TL 500,000,000 (31 December 2019: TL 500,000,000).
The registered capital ceiling permission is effective until 2022.

The shareholders and their shareholding percentages as of 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows
with the historical amounts:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Total Share (%) Total Share (%)

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. 85,653,274 81.57 85,653,274 81.57
Other (Listed) 19,346,726 18.43 19,346,726 18.43

Capital 105,000,000 105,000,000 100.00

Adjustment to share capital 105,173,533 105,173,533

Adjusted capital 210,173,533 210,173,533

Adjustment to share capital represents the difference between the cash contributions adjusted for
inflation and the cash contributions prior to adjustment for inflation.

The profits accumulated under legal books that do not qualify for the below clause, can be distributed.

The legal reserves consist of first and second reserves, appropriated in accordance with the Turkish
Commercial Code (‘TCC’), The TCC stipulates that the first legal reserve is appropriated out of statutory
profits at the rate of 5% per annum, until the total reserve reaches 20% of the Company’s paid-
in/authorized share capital, The second legal reserve is appropriated at the rate of 10% per annum of all
cash distributions in excess of 5% of the paid-in/authorized share capital, Under the TCC, the legal
reserves can only be used to offset losses and are not available for any other usage unless they exceed
50% of paid-in/authorized share capital.

b) Restricted reserves

As of 31 December 2020 and 2019 restricted reserves appropriated from profit is as follows:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Legal reserves 21,141,540 21,141,540
Gain on sale of real estate fund 13,593,750 13,593,750
Gain on sale of shares of associates 887,495 887,495

Total 35,622,785 35,622,785
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10. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES VE OTHER EQUITY ITEMS LERİ (Continued) 

Profit distribution:

In accordance with the decision taken on 9 April 2020, it has been decided to pay dividends amounting
to 50,001,000 with an equivalent of TL 0,40477 per each share. Payments have been completed on
16 April 2020 (During the period ended at 31 December 2018, in accordance with the decision taken on
11 April 2019 it has been decided to pay dividend amounting to TL 78,750,000, with an equivalent of
TL 0,6375 per each share and dividends were paid out on 24 May 2019).

11. GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General administrative expenses

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Services received from related parties (Note 3) 4,086,013 4,749,172
Outsourced service expenses 143,324 409,011
Other 663,985 382,575

4,893,322 5,540,758

12. OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

Other operating income
1 January - 1 January -

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Foreign exchange gains 40,497,729 9,994,216
Dividend income (Note 3) 22,357,844 34,141,946
Bank interest income 2,211,784 5,491,086
Other 120,949 -

65,188,306 49,627,248

Other operating expense (-)
1 January - 1 January -

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Foreign exchange losses 16,489,556 6,175,234
Other 12,781 291,800

16,502,337 6,467,034
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13. SHARES INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED BY EQUITY METHOD OF PROFITS /
LOSSES)

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Shares from the profits of investments accounted
using the equity method (Note 6) 96,912,943 39,332,050

96,912,943 39,332,050

14. FINANCIAL EXPENSES
1 January - 1 January -

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Interest expenses from leasing payables (Note 3) 4,564 6,111

4,564 6,111

15. TAXATION

The Company is subject to Turkish corporate taxes, Provision is made in the accompanying financial
statements for the estimated charge based on the Company’s results for the years and periods, Turkish
tax legislation does not permit a parent company and its subsidiary to file a consolidated tax return.

Corporate Tax

The corporate tax rate to be accrued over the taxable corporate income is based on the tax base remaining
after the addition of non-deductible expenses from the tax base in determining the commercial income
and deducting the tax-exempt earnings, non-taxable income and other discounts (if any, previous year
losses and investment discounts used if preferred). is calculated.

1 January 2006 entered into force with effect from the date of 21 June 2006 and 5520, Income Tax Law
of the 5th of Article (1) paragraph (d) according to the provisions in Turkey established securities
portfolio of investment funds and partnerships Business earnings are exempt from corporate tax. The
mentioned corporate tax exemption is also valid in terms of temporary tax application. No further tax is
paid if the profit is not distributed.

In accordance with the regulation numbered 7061, published in Official Gazette on 5 December 2017,’
Law on the Amendment of Some Tax Acts and Some Other Laws’, corporate tax rate for the years 2018,
2019 and 2020 has increased from 20% to 22%, Therefore, deferred tax assets and liabilities as of
31 December 2019 are calculated with 22% tax rate for the temporary differences which will be realized
in 2019 and 2020, and with 20% tax for those which will be realized after 2021 and onwards, however
since the effect of change in tax rate on financial statements is immaterial, calculated amount is not
accounted in financial statements.



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

ECZACIBAŞI YATIRIM HOLDİNG ORTAKLIĞI A.Ş. 

NOTES TO THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

30

15. TAXATION (Continued)

In Turkey, advance tax returns are filed on a quarterly basis, Advance corporate income tax rate applied
in 2019 is 22% (2019: 22%), Losses can be carried forward for offset against future taxable income for
up to 5 years, However, losses cannot be carried back for offset against profits from previous periods.

Furthermore, there is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on tax assessments, Companies
file their tax returns between 1 - 30 April following the close of the accounting year to which they relate.
Tax authorities may, however, examine such returns and the underlying accounting records and may
revise assessments within five years.

Withholding taxation

In addition to corporate taxes, companies should also calculate income withholding taxes and funds
surcharge on any dividends distributed, except for companies receiving dividends who are Turkish
residents and Turkish branches of foreign companies, Income withholding tax applied in between
24 April 2003 - 22 July 2006 is 10% and commencing from 22 July 2006, this rate has been changed to
15% upon the Council of Ministers’ Resolution No: 2006/10731, Undistributed dividends incorporated
in share capital are not subject to income withholding tax.

Withholding tax at the rate of 19.8% is still applied to investment allowances relating to investment
incentive certificates obtained prior to 24 April 2003, Subsequent to this date, the investments without
investment incentive certificates do not qualify for tax allowance.

Corporate Tax Law is changed with Law No, 5520 dated 13 June 2006, and most of the articles of
mentioned law have become effective as of 1 January 2006. Accordingly, corporate tax rate in Turkey is
22% for 2020 (2019: 22%). Corporation tax is payable on the total income of the Company after adjusting
for certain disallowable expenses, corporate income tax exemptions (participation exemption, investment
incentive allowance, etc.) and corporate income tax deductions (like research and development
expenditures deduction). No further tax is payable unless the profit is distributed except withholding tax at
the rate of 19.8% on the investment incentive allowance utilized within the scope of the Income Tax Law
Transitional Article 61.

The taxes distribution on the consolidated statement of financial position for the periods
1 January - 31 December 2020 and 2019 are summarized below:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Current period corporate tax liability (-) (4,717,304) (4,317,422)
Prepaid taxes 6,229,066 3,680,554

Current period income tax asset/(liability) 1,511,762 (636,868)

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Current period corporate tax (-) (4,717,304) (4,317,422)
Deferred income tax (41) 577

Total tax expense (4,717,345) (4,316,845)
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15. TAXATION (Continued)

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Profit before tax from continuing oprations 140,701,026 76,945,395

Theoretical tax expense generated by the current tax rate (-) (30,954,226) (16,927,987)
Shares of associates accounted for using

equity accounting method 21,320,847 10,284,337
Tax-exempt dividend income 4,918,726 7,511,228
Tax-exempt gain on subsidiary - (3,929,014)
Other (2,692) (1,255,409)

Total tax expense (4,717,345) (4,316,845)

Deferred tax

The Company recognises deferred tax assets and liabilities based upon temporary differences arising
between the financial statements prepared in accordance with TAS/TFRS and the tax financial statements,
Such temporary differences generally arise due to revenues and expenses being recognised in different
fiscal periods in accordance with tax regulations and TAS/TFRS, The tax rate used for deferred tax assets
and liabilities is 20% (31 December 2019 : 22%).

The breakdown of cumulative temporary differences and deferred income tax assets and liabilities
accounted as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 using the enacted tax rates is as follows:

Total temporary Deferred tax
differences assets/liabilities

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019

Temporary differences related to fair value through
other comprehensive

income assets (-) (*) (Note 17) (1,093,308,285) (867,504,870) (54,665,415) (43,375,244)
Adjustments regarding leasing transactions 2,679 2,623 536 577

Deferred tax liabilities (-) (54,664,879) (43,374,667)

(*) The Corporate Taxation Law numbered 5520 (‘KVK’), which was be implemented as at 1 January 2006, has amended
the old KVK application numbered 5422 on ‘Tax Exemption of Immovable and Subsidiary Sales Revenues’, Only 75%
of the profits arising from the sale of immovable properties (real estates) and participation shares, founding shares,
usufruct shares and preferential rights in the assets of the institutions for at least two full years are taxable exceptions,
As the Company management expects to hold the profit that would be earned from related financial inestments under
equity at least for 2 years, begining from 1 January 2006, the taxation rate used in deferred tax rate is determined as
5% in the deferred tax calculaiton, As the related temporary differences are accounted under equity, related deferred
tax liability is also net-off from financial assets fair value fund under the equity.
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15. TAXATION (Continued)

The movement of deferred income tax liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

2020 2019

Opening - 1 January (43,374,667) (39,945,053)

Recognized under statement of comprehensive income (11,290,171) (3,430,191)
Recognized under statement of other

comprehensive (expenses)/income (41) 577

Closing - 31 December (54,664,879) (43,374,667)

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE

1 January - 1 January -
Earnings per share 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Average number of
shares for period 105,000,000 105,000,000

Net profit from continuing operations
attributable to parent Company’s shareholders 135,983,681 72,628,550

Earning per share from continuing operations 1.30 0.69

Other comprehensive income of
parent company shareholders’ 567,991,903 296,843,988

Earnings per share from continuing operating activities
- thousand ordinary shares (TL) 5.41 2.83

17. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Long-term financial investments 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Financial assets measured at fair value
through comprehensive income 1,206,279,307 980,475,892

Total 1,206,279,307 980,475,892
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17. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Share 31 December Share 31 December
Non-public financial investments (%) 2020 (%) 2019

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. (*) 11.54 1,013,832,183 11.54 826,040,560
Eczacıbaşı Yapı Gereçleri A.Ş. 10.29 192,447,124 10.29 154,435,332

Total 1,206,279,307 980,475,892

(*) The company has determined a fair value by using valuation techniques for its financial assets that are not
traded in an active market. These valuation techniques include based on current transactions in line with
market conditions or other essentially similar investment instruments and discounted cash flow analysis
taking into account the conditions specific to the invested company. Changes in fair values are accounted
for in the "Gain from financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income" account from
equity items. In fair value determination of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş., the methods shown below are used; 

i) Rent income; discounted cash flows (Level 3).
ii) Real estates; current transaction cost, arm’s length price and expertise values (Level 2 and 3).
iii) Net asset values of remaining assets and liabilities in cash (Level 3).
iv) The multiplication of ownership interest rates of Eczacıbaşı Holding with the fair values of all 

subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.

The methods used in fair value measurement of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. are as follows: 

Fair Value Measurement Methods Code

Market price (II)
Discounted cash flows (III)
Current transaction price (IV)
Net asset value (V)
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17. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Eczacıbaşı Holding 

Proportion of Fair value
power held by measurement

Eczacıbaşı Holding (%) (*) method

Entity Name 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. (**) 100.00 100.00 (I) (I) (I) (I)
EİS Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Fin. Yat. San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 74.84 74.82 (I) (I) (I) (I)
İntema İnşaat ve Tesisat Malz. Yatırım ve Pazarlama A.Ş. 77.38 77.38 (III) (II) 3. sıra 1. sıra 
Eczacıbaşı Yapı Gereçleri San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 98.10 98.10 (III) (III) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Esan Eczacıbaşı Endüstriyel Hammaddeler San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 99.66 99.69 (III) (III) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Vitra Karo San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 92.79 92.79 (III) (III) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Eczacıbaşı Tüketim Ürünleri San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 100.00 100.00 (III) (III) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
EİP Eczacıbaşı İlaç Pazarlama A.Ş. 74.84 74.82 (III) (III) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
E-Kart Elektronik Kart Sistemleri San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 44.23 44.23 (III) (III) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
ESİ Eczacıbaşı Sigorta Acenteliği A.Ş. 4.92 4.92 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Eczacıbaşı Momentum Teknoloji Yatırımları A.Ş  100.00 100.00 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Eczacıbaşı Sağlık Hizmetleri A.Ş. (***) - 88.48 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Eczacıbaşı Gayrimenkul Geliştirme ve Yatırım A.Ş. 74.92 74.92 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Eczacıbaşı İlaç Ticaret A.Ş. 74.85 74.83 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. 81.57 81.57 (V) (V) 2. sıra 2. sıra 
Kanyon Yönetim İşletim ve Pazarlama A.Ş. 50.00 50.00 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Toplu Konut Holding A.Ş. 27.00 27.00 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Ekom Eczacıbaşı Dış Ticaret A.Ş. 89.74 89.73 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Eczacıbaşı-Monrol Nükleer Ürünler San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 60.62 62.85 (III) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Villeroy & Boch Fliesen GmbH 90.67 90.66 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Vitra Fliesen GmbH & Co. KG 92.79 92.79 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Tasfiye Halinde Eczacıbaşı-Baxter Hast. Ür. San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 37.42 37.41 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Eczacıbaşı Bilişim San. ve Tic. A.Ş. 96.62 96.62 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 
Vitra Plitka 92.79 92.79 (V) (V) 3. sıra 3. sıra 

(*) Proportion of ownership interest represents the effective shareholding of Eczacıbaşı Holding directly 
through the shares held in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates and indirectly by these companies.

(**) The capital of Eczacıbaşı Holding was increased free of charge from TL 213 million to TL 852 million on 
22 May 2020, by covering the entire increase from internal resources. In this context, the share ratio of our
company in Eczacıbaşı Holding remained the same and the number of shares increased from 24,580,209 to 
98,320,836.

(***) The company has been sold at 2 March 2020.
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17. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

(I) In the fair value measurement of Eczacıbaşı Holding, for the stand-alone fair value of EİS 
Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş., the effect of the mutual 
subsidiary with Eczacıbaşı Holding has been taken into consideration, In the related stand-alone 
fair value determination;

i) Kanyon Shopping Mall and Office Building; discounted cash flows of rent incomes
(Level 3),

ii) Financial assets; current transaction cost (Level 2) and current market prices (Level 1),
iii) Real estates; current transaction cost, arm’s length price and expertise values (Level 2 and 3),
iv) Net asset value of remaining assets in cash (Level 2) and liabilities in cash (Level 3),

In this context, the fair value has been calculated as TL 2,378,814,000 as of 31 December 2020
(31 December 2019: TL 2,215,724,000). As of 31 December 2020, market/stock value of EİS 
Eczacıbaşı İlaç, Sınai ve Finansal Yatırımlar Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. amounts to TL 5,112,040,000 
(31 December 2019: TL 2,542,315,000).

(II) The securities measured at market values are valued by the strike price as of 31 December 2019
in Borsa Istanbul (‘BIST’), As of year-end, there are no financial instruments listed in a stock
exchange other than BIST.

(III) The discount rates used in discounted cash-flow method are determined for each entity separately
taking into consideration the following factors:

i) The countries in which each entity is located and the risk premiums of these countries,
ii) The market risk premiums for each entity and
iii) The industry risk premiums for the sectors in which each entity operates,

Comparable risk premiums (in line with observable market data) are used in the determination of
discount rates.

For the calculation of discount rates used for companies valuated with discounted cash flow
method cost of equity and cost of capital have been evaluated considering to risk free return rate
and risk premiums, Accordingly weighted average cost of capital (‘WACC’) rates are calculated
with regards to sustainable debt to equity ratios of each industry of related company, As of 31
December 2019, if WACC would be 100 base point higher/lower, fair value of asset held for sale
would be thousand TL 379,239 lower/thousand TL 465,665 higher.

In this context, the discount rates used for companies with functional currency TL are changed
between 16.6% - 18% (31 December 2019: 15% - 18%) while the discount rate used for
companies with functional currency USD is none (31 December 2019: 9.5%), EUR is 7.4% (31
December 2019: 6.9%), and GBP is 7.5% (31 December 2019: 7.2%).

(IV) Current transaction price consists of the financial instruments of which fair values are measured
by comparable costs of current transactions as of the statement of financial position date.
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17. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

(V,VI) The fair values of these companies are determined by net asset values and net book values, the
net asset value is calculated by deducting liabilities from monetary assets, whereas net book
values are calculated by their cost values.

(VII) In the discounted cash flow method used within the scope of the valuation, the long-term
growth rate for the Turkish Lira was used as 5%. If this rate was 50 basis points higher/lower,
the amounts were TL 101,995 and TL 93,648 (31 December 2019: TL 65,592 and TL 60,265)
respectively.

The fair value of each company calculated according to the methods mentioned above is multiplied by
the effective partnership ratio of Eczacıbaşı Holding and the total fair value of Eczacıbaşı Holding has 
been found, and the calculation detail of the amount included in the Company's financial statements as
of 31 December is summarized in the table below:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Total fair value of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. (*) 9,947,927,477 8,105,277,900
Total share of the Company within the total fair value
  of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. (**) 1,147,991,251 935,349,412
The effect of mutual subsidiary 119,298,978 97,201,288

Fair value before liquidity discount 1,267,290,229 1,032,550,700

Miniority discount (-) (253,458,046) (206,510,140)

Fair value of the Company in consolidated financials 1,013,832,183 826,040,560

(*) Reflects the amount multiplied with the total proportion of ownership interests.

(**) As of 31 December 2020 and 2019 the direct capital share of Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A.Ş. 
within Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. is 11.54%. 
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17. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Continued)

As presented in the table above, TL 9,947,927,477 (31 December 2019: TL 8,105,277,900) of fair value
before minority discount is calculated by using the fair value of Eczacıbaşı Holding A,Ş, which amounts 
to TL 1,147,991,251 (31 December 2019: TL 935,349,412) which is multiplied by 11.54%
(31 December 2019: 11.54%), the share participation of Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A,Ş in Eczacıbaşı 
Holding A,Ş, and the result equals to TL 119,298,978 (31 December 2019: TL 97,201,288) is added to 
TL 1,267,290,229 (31 December 2019: TL 1,032,550,700), which is calculated as the effect of reciprocal
shares between Eczacıbaşı Yatırım Holding Ortaklığı A,Ş, and Eczacıbaşı Holding A,Ş is discounted 
from the total amount and fair value of (31 December 2019: TL 826,040,560) is reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. By deducting 20% minority discount from this amount, the fair value
of TL 1,013,832,183 in the financial statements has been obtained.

As of 31 December 2020, the effect of a change of 100 basis points in the minority discount applied for
financial investments whose fair value is determined by the discounted cash flow method is TL
12,672,899 (31 December 2019: TL 10,325,502).

18. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in
debt and equity market prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Company’s overall
risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company.

(a) Credit risk

Most of the the Company’s credit risk arises from the trade receivables, marketable securities and time
deposits in the banks. The bank deposits got off less than three months, Marketable securities comprise
the government bonds those are issued by the Turkish Republic Prime Ministry Undersecretariat for the
Treasury.
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18. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risks exposed by types of financial instruments

Receivables
Trade Receivables Other Receivables

Financial Cash and cash
31 December 2020 Related party Other Related party Other instruments (*) equivalent

Maximum credit risk exposure as of reporting date (A+B+C+D) - - - 22,766,386 1,206,279,307 83,041,369

- Collateralized or secured with guarantees part of maximum credit risk - - - - - -

A. Neither past due nor impaired net book value - - - 22,766,386 1,206,279,307 83,041,369

B. Past due but not impaired net book value - - - - - -

C. Net book value of impaired assets - - - - - -

- Past due (gross amount) - - - - - -

- Impairment (-) - - - - - -
D. Off balance sheet items with credit risk - - - - - -

(*) As of 31 December 2020, all related financial instruments amounting to TL 1,206,279,307 consist of financial assets whose fair value difference is reflected to other comprehensive income of the
related parties of the Company.

In determining the above amounts, factors that increase credit reliability, such as collateral received, are not considered. The Company's financial assets exposed
to credit risk do not have any impaired assets. In addition, the Company does not have assets that involve risks other than those of the non-statement of financial
position and have not been impaired.
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18. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Receivables
Trade Receivables Other Receivables

Financial Cash and cash
31 December 2019 Related party Other Related party Other instruments (*) equivalent

Maximum credit risk exposure as of reporting date (A+B+C+D) - - - 246,636 980,475,892 105,678,582

- Collateralized or secured with guarantees part of maximum credit risk - - - - - -

A. Neither past due nor impaired net book value - - - 246,636 980,475,892 105,678,582

B. Past due but not impaired net book value - - - - - -

C. Net book value of impaired assets - - - - - -

- Past due (gross amount) - - - - - -

- Impairment (-) - - - - - -
D. Off balance sheet items with credit risk - - - - - -

(*) As of 31 December 2019, all related financial instruments amounting to TL 980,475,892 consist of financial assets of which the fair value difference of the Company's related parties is
reflected to other comprehensive income.

In determining the above amounts, factors that increase credit reliability, such as collateral received, are not considered. The Company's financial assets exposed
to credit risk do not have any impaired assets. In addition, the Company does not have assets that involve risks other than those of the non-statement of financial
position and have not been impaired.
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18. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

The Company's management has tried to manage the credit risk of receivables according to customer-
specific credit risk analysis through such methods as advances obtained from customer or work with
letter of credit. The Company protects itself from any dispute by analysing the reliability of their
customers, putting required sales terms to sales contracts. Furthermore, the Company management
follows the delays in collections from its customers by analysing aging analyses and takes precautions
to such kind of delays.

Trade receivables are spread out to various sectors and geographical clients, The Company reviews
customers’ collection risk and ensure the receivable if needed.

b) Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the inability of the Company to match the net funding requirements with sufficient
liquidity, A decrease in funding sources mainly due to market instability or a decrease in credit risk
results in liquidity risk, The Company manages the liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and
other liquid assets in order to fund the current and prospective debt requirements.

The distribution of expiration of the financial liabilities as of 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2019 according to their contract dates is as follows:

31 December 2020
Contractual Less Between Between More

cash flow than 3 3-12 1-5 than 5
Book Total months months years years

Maturities of contractual terms Value (I+II+III+IV) (I) (II) (III) (IV)

Trade payables 895,719 895,719 895,719 - - -
Lease liabilities 17,563 17,563 4,094 13,469 - -

Total liabilities 913,282 913,282 899,813 13,469 - -

31 December 2019

Contractual Less Between Between More
cash flow than 3 3-12 1-5 than 5

Book Total months months years years
Maturities of contractual terms Value (I+II+III+IV) (I) (II) (III) (IV)

Trade payables 617,292 617,292 617,292 - - -
Lease liabilities 27,873 27,873 2,943 9,682 15,248 -

Total liabilities 645,165 645,165 620,235 9,682 15,248 -
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18. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

c) Market Risk

i) Currency risk

In the case of owning of foreign currency assets, liabilities and non-balance sheet liabilities, the risk that
is exposed to resulting from the currency movements is defined as the foreign exchange risk.

As of 31 December 2020 and 2019 the monetary assets and liabilities of foreign currency are as follows:

31 December 2020 Functional Curreny (TL) USD EUR

Monetary financial assets 82,722,732 11,219,937 40,274

Other receivables 22,519,750 - 2,500,000

Total Assets 105,242,482 11,219,937 2,540,274

Total Liabilities - - -

Net foreign currency position 105,242,482 11,219,937 2,540,274

Functional
31 December 2019 Curreny (TL) USD EUR

Monetary financial assets 93,063,853 15,666,788 -

Total Assets 93,063,853 15,666,788 -

Total Liabilities - - -

Net foreign currency position 93,063,853 15,666,788 -
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18. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

31 December 2020
Profit/Loss Equity

Appreciation of Depreciation of Appreciation of Depreciation of
foreign currency foreign currency foreign currency foreign currency

10% change in USD against TL:

USD net asset/liabilitiy 8,235,995 (8,235,995) 8,235,995 (8,235,995)
Hedge Positions (-) - - - -

USD net effect 8,235,995 (8,235,995) 8,235,995 (8,235,995)

10% change in EUR against TL:

EUR net asset/liabilitiy 2,288,253 (2,288,253) 2,288,253 (2,288,253)
Hedge Positions (-) - - - -

EUR net effect 2,288,253 (2,288,253) 2,288,253 (2,288,253)

Total 10,524,248 (10,524,248) 10,524,248 (10,524,248)

31 December 2019
Profit/Loss Equity

Appreciation of Depreciation of Appreciation of Depreciation of
foreign currency foreign currency foreign currency foreign currency

10% change in USD against TL:

USD net asset/liabilitiy 9,306,385 (9,306,385) 9,306,385 (9,306,385)
Hedge Positions (-) - - - -

USD net effect 9,306,385 (9,306,385) 9,306,385 (9,306,385)

Total 9,306,385 (9,306,385) 9,306,385 (9,306,385)

As of 31 December 2020 and 2019, the exchange rates used in the calculation of TL equivalents of
foreign currency assets and liabilities are as follows:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

USD 7.3405 5.9402
EUR 9.0079 6.6506
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18. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

c) Market Risk (Continued)

ii) Interest risk

The Company management uses its interest-bearing assets in short-term investment instruments within
the framework of the principle of managing it with natural measures by balancing the maturities of
interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities.

As of 31 December 2020, there are no financial assets exposed to interest rate risk other than time
deposits in the financial statement of the Company. In addition to this, the Company is exposed to
interest rate risk due to change in weighted average cost of capital included in free cash flow models
used in valuation of equity based financial investments at Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. classified as financial 
assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company presents the possible
expected effects of the changes in interest rates or in components of interest in Note 19. In addition to
these, as the Company does not have a financial assets or liabilities with variable interest rate and the
effect of the possible repricing would have not material effect on carrying value of the time deposits,
the Company has not presented sensitivity analyze on time deposits.

The interest rate applied to the financial assets as of the 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 is as
follows:

Assets 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
TL (%) TL (%)

Time deposits - 10.25

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
USD (%) USD (%)

Time deposits 2.50 2.25

Interest rate types of the Company’s financial instruments as of 31 December 2020 and 2019 are
presented below.

Financial instruments with fixed interest 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Time deposits 82,371,270 101,800,250

iii) Price risk

The Company is not subject to price risk as there is no equity investment that are classified under
financial assets measured on fair value through profit and loss (31 December 2019: None).
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19. FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Level classifications of financial assets and liabilities given at their fair values:

Finansal varlıkların ve yükümlülüklerin gerçeğe uygun değeri aşağıdaki gibi belirlenir: 

 Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,
 Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly (i.e, as prices) or indirectly (i.e, derived from prices),
 Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs),

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company are reflected to the financial statements
at their fair values at each balance sheet date, The following table provides information on how to
determine the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities:

31 December 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Fair value through other comprehensive
income assets (*) (**) - 355,120,717 851,158,590

- 355,120,717 851,158,590

31 December 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Fair value through other comprehensive
income assets (*) (**) 14,196,107 332,086,372 634,193,413

14,196,107 332,086,372 634,193,413

(*) The detailed information required for Levels 2 and 3 is given in Note 19.

(**) The detailed information on methods used in the determination of fair value is given in Note 17.

As of 31 December 2020, the fair value of financial assets whose fair value difference is reflected in
other comprehensive income is TL 1,206,279,307 (31 December 2019: TL 980,475,892).

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Opening
634,193,413 611,488,049

Total income recognized under other comprehensive income 217,130,476 35,142,213
Classification changes within the period (-) (165,299) (12,436,849)

Closing 851,158,590 634,193,413
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20. DISCLOSURES RELATED TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Cash in banks 83,041,369 105,678,582
Demand deposits 670,099 3,878,332
Term deposits with a maturity of less than three months (*) 82,371,270 101,800,250

Total 83,041,369 105,678,582

(*) As of 31 December 2020, the maturity of time deposits is less than 1 month and the average interest rates
applied are 2.50% for USD deposits (31 December 2019: for time deposits with maturities less than
1 month, the average interest rates applied are 10.25% for TL deposits, 2.25% for USD deposits.).

As of 31 December 2020, and 2019 cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated statements
of cash flows are presented below:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Cash and cash equivalents 83,041,369 105,678,582
Rediscount (-) (157,670) (117,250)

Total 82,883,699 105,561,332

21. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

At the Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting of Eczacıbaşı Holding A.Ş. held on 20 January 2021, 
it was decided to distribute a dividend amounting to TL 130,545,961 (TL 15,065,009 per the Company's
share) for the year 2020, and this amount was paid on 21 January 2021 to the Company.

…………………..


